

MINUTES

Airport Noise Advisory Committee

Date/Time 4/26/2017 4:00 p.m. Meeting called to order by: Heidi Gantwerk

In Attendance

Name	Affiliation	In Attendance
Captain (Ret.) Jack Bewley	Airline Pilot (Retired)	Yes
Lee Steuer	Representative for Congresswoman Susan Davis	Yes
Emmet Aquino	County of San Diego	No
Conrad Wear	Representative for San Diego City Council, District 2	Yes
Carl "Rick" Huenefeld	MCRD	No
Susan Ranft	Downtown Community Planning Council	Yes
Kirk Hansen	Community at Large	Yes
David Swarens	Greater Golden Hill Community Planning Committee	Yes
Deborah Watkins	Mission Beach Precise Planning Board	Yes
Fred Kosmo	Peninsula Community Planning Board	Yes
Tom Gawronski	Ocean Beach Planning Board	Yes
Victoria White	City of San Diego, Planning Department	No*
Robert Cook	FAA	Yes
Brian Elliott	Representative for Congressman Scott Peters	Yes
Chris Cole	Uptown Planners	Yes
Justin Cook	Acoustical Engineer	Yes
Vacant	Commercial Airline Pilot Representative	No
Victor Avina	Representative for San Diego County Supervisor Greg Cox	No?
Randall LaRocco	Midway/Pacific Highway Community Planning Board	No
Melissa Hernholm-Danzo	Peninsula Steering Committee	Yes
Angela Jamison	Authority Staff	Yes
Sjohnna Knack	Authority Staff	Yes
Heidi Gantwerk	Facilitator	Yes
	*Members contacted staff ahead of time and are considered excused.	

1. Welcome and Introductions

Heidi Gantwerk, facilitator for the Airport Noise Advisory Committee (ANAC), opened the meeting at 4:00 p.m. She welcomed Fred Kosmo, representing the Peninsula Community Planning Board.

Presentation Items

Note: A copy of the information in the presentation can be found via our website using the following link:

http://www.san.org/Airport-Noise/Initiatives#405494-meeting-schedule

<u>Quieter Home Program Update</u> – Craig Mayer, Deputy Program Manager, Quieter Home Program (Program), provided an update on the Program's status.

There are currently 660 applicants on our wait list (1,402 homes or units). That number is down a little bit from the last meeting because we started a new project. Total homes completed to date remains the same as last meeting at 3,453.

Since the last ANAC:

- We received approval to bid Project 8.12. 8.12 is an 84-unit, non-historic, multi-family project that is designed to receive a ventilation system in addition to the windows and the doors.
- We submitted 30% drawings for Project 8.10. 8.10 is a historic group of 13 single-family homes that are designed to receive air-conditioning systems.
- Staff met with FAA staff in Los Angeles to resolve outstanding concerns to move the program forward.

Question from ANAC: Fred Kosmo said he was approached by somebody who said that there was a slow-down in the Quieter Home Program. Mr. Kosmo wanted to know what can be done to get it back on track?

Mr. Mayer stated that since August of 2015 staff has been working with the FAA to resolve the current policy issues that the FAA wants to see incorporated into our program. He reiterated that we are doing everything we can to resolve these issues as quickly as we can.

<u>Curfew Violation Review Panel (CVRP) Statistics</u> – Sjohnna Knack, Program Manager, Airport Planning and Noise Mitigation, gave a review of the curfew violations.

For February and March of 2017 there was a significant decrease in the overall number of violations. For the two months there were three violations in February and none in March. Part of this was due to better weather conditions in March. Our assessed penalties are higher because many carriers have high multipliers.

<u>Missed Approach Statistics</u> - Ms. Knack explained the definition of missed approaches. She clarified that a missed approach is done for safety reasons and cannot be influenced by the Airport Authority.

Missed approaches for the past two months are higher as compared to last year. There were 78 in February and 58 in March. It is important to note that relative to the total number of operations, missed approaches are less than 1%. Additionally, when looking at the flight tracks of missed approaches, many flew straight out on a "normal" flight path. Only 22 in the two months turned before the noise dots.

<u>Early Turns</u> – Ms. Knack explained the difference between early turns and missed approaches. Early turns in essence are flights that are not compliant with the FAA noise dots. February early turns were higher, which coincides with the poor weather conditions. Flights were turned early to avoid thunderstorm cells. In March, early turns took a significant decrease (70% lower than last year). Predominantly this was related to the implementation of a new SoCal Metroplex procedure over Mission Beach. This procedure includes waypoints to keep aircraft complaint with the FAA noise dots. Early turns to the left over Point Loma continue to be low with the November implementation of the ZZOOO procedure.

Ms. Knack included new statistical information breaking down the reasons for early turns. This information is separated between Point Loma and Mission Beach and looks at those aircraft that were close to the noise dots (within 1,500 feet), still pending investigation, ATC, pilot deviation and weather. Most early turns were very close to the noise dots.

Metroplex Update -

Ms. Knack stated that she did not have an update on Metroplex, except to say that as of right now the FAA has no further SoCal Metroplex procedures to implement in San Diego.

Question from ANAC: Mr. Kosmo stated early turns are on a decline but it seems like pilots think they get away with it and they can turn early to save money.

Mr. Bewely, ANAC Member retired pilot, confirmed that was incorrect. He elaborated that pilots do not have the discretionary authority to make turns on their own, unless there is an emergency, such as avoiding a collision, or a

mechanical issue such as engine failure. They're not going to take an arbitrary turn to save fuel as they are constrained by the FAA (Air Traffic Control). Additionally, most pilots use the autopilot features to fly the airplane. They don't deviate from that, unless Air Traffic Control instructs them to make a turn.

Mr. Rick Savage, FAA Air Traffic Control confirmed that Mr. Bewely's statements were accurate. None of the turns are arbitrary or capricious. They're all done for a good purpose, and it's all to preserve safety. He also confirmed that often it is the flight management system that's flying the airplane. He further stated that all of the air traffic controllers are instructed not to deviate unless there is an emergency.

Noise Complaints Statistics – Ms. Caroline Becker, Noise Mitigation Specialist, explained her presentation of noise complaints by month. Over the past two months, there was an increase in the number of complaints to 6,288 complaints.

Out of those 6,288 complaints, the largest number of complaints we had on a singular aircraft event was seven. Two of the top five events were on March 22nd where we had two curfew violations.

When looking at the breakdown of what people are most complaining about, the greatest number of complaints were low or loud aircraft complaints, followed by over the ocean, and then off-course and low and loud. We have a couple new categories that we hadn't seen before, continuous prolonged noise, or frequency of flights.

Previously we have presented on number of noise complaints per neighborhood, however now we are moving to show number of households that issued complaints by neighborhood. For us, there is no distinction between a person sends us one complaint or 1,000 complaints, we're looking at that the same way. They're both just as valid. And we want to treat them the same way.

Question from ANAC: Mr. Chris Cole stated he found the breakdown to be very impressive. I asked if this data was helping staff in our discussions with airlines?

Ms. Knack stated that as it stands, the carriers are not really interested in the number of complaints. They are more interested in the types of procedures the public is concerned about. She indicated that staff is going to rectify this with a new noise complaint system that have noise complaint categories that will help us. It will switch our efforts from data entry into a case management role. She stated she will be presenting more information later in the meeting.

Fly Quiet Report -

Ms. Knack presented the second Fly Quiet Report for 4th Quarter 2016. This report looks at changes between 4th Quarter 2016, and 3rd Quarter 2016. She reminded everyone that Fly Quiet Program is a report that allows us to grade or score an operator on how quietly they operate out of our airport. Right now, we look at three elements. We look at curfew violations, early turns, and the fleet, or the type of aircraft that they're flying.

Ms. Knack discussed that both United and Southwest airlines had a high number of early turn scores that she anticipated will improve in 2017 with the implementation of the Metroplex procedures. These airlines were also reminded of the FAA noise dots.

Curfew scores were lower due to the higher than normal violations during the holiday periods. Several carriers (United, Delta, British Airways and American) cancelled flights to avoid violating the curfew.

Fleet quality will continue to improve as older and louder aircraft are being phased out.

Question from ANAC: Mr. Cole asked if the new RNAV procedures are reflected in the scores?

Ms. Knack indicated that the early turn scores do reflect the ZZOOO procedure starting on November 2nd.

Question from ANAC: Mr. Kosmo asked if the carriers were actually cancelling flights to avoid curfew violations or if it was just because didn't have enough people on the flight to make it worth it.

Ms. Knack indicated that all flights out of San Diego have a very high load factor (or % of the plane that is full) so cancelling flights is not due to a low number of people on the plane. She stated she believes they do not want to violate the curfew.

Subcommittee Update – Letter to FAA

ANAC member Debbie Watkins, Chair of the ANAC Subcommittee, gave an update on the last Subcommittee meeting on Wednesday, March 15th. The topic of the meeting was an assessment of historical versus current

arrival and departure procedures for 2009, 2014, and 2016, from communities of Point Loma to La Jolla Shores. The Subcommittee also welcomed a new member from La Jolla, Chris McCann. Mr. Sandy Purdon from Point Loma, gave up his seat so that La Jolla could be represented on the panel.

Mr. Rob Cook, the FAA TRACON Supervisor, presented on the assessment of historical data for a one-month period in December 2009, 2014, and 2016. The subcommittee discussed various aspects of the presentation, including the weather impacts and aircraft sequencing impacting early turns.

Subcommittee also discussed:

- The reduction in early turns with the utilization of the SoCal Metroplex procedures, ZZOOO and PADRZ along with the number of aircraft following RNAV procedures.
- Nighttime departure routes on the 290-degree heading for noise.
- The number of aircraft that are vectored.

The Subcommittee meets again on May 17th, to review potential for procedure modification to limit or prevent early turns and missed approaches, and review the applicability of the FAA noise dots.

Several members of the Subcommittee expressed concern over the representation of the FAA not being able to address questions or make management decisions. Ms. Watkins presented a letter that the Subcommittee drafted to request the FAA to send the appropriate personnel.

Facilitator Heidi Gantwerk pointed out that ANAC had a chance to look at the letter as it was in their member package sent out last week. She stated she spoke with the staff regarding Board policy, which indicates that ANAC is not a board that can take action, ANAC can make recommendations to the Airport Authority Board. She told the panel they needed to decide if ANAC wants to recommend that staff forward this letter to the Airport Authority Board for their consideration to send the FAA the letter.

A motion was made by ANAC Member Victoria White and seconded by ANAC Member David Swarens.

During discussion, ANAC Member Brian Elliott representing Congressman Scott Peters office, pointed out that the relationship with the FAA has been very good so far. He suggested that there may be other alternatives, other than sending the letter, to maintain the positive working relationship and the open conversations we've been able to have with them.

There was a discussion between members regarding questions that were not answered in the Subcommittee meeting. Ms. Gantwerk pointed out that most questions that were not answered in the meeting were provided to members within a week after the meeting. Ms. Watkins indicated that it was the Subcommittee's preference that someone with decision-making authority would attend the meetings.

Mr. Conrad Wear representing City Councilwoman Lori Zapf's office if the FAA is required to be at the meetings. Ms. Knack stated that attendance at ANAC meetings or ANAC Subcommittee meetings is voluntary. The FAA did make a commitment in front of the Airport Authority Board to attend and they have met that commitment of supporting.

Members then discussed the possibility of not sending the letter and asking Airport Authority staff to request that Barry Davis attend the next ANAC Subcommittee meeting on May 17, 2017. Members generally felt that the request would be sufficient but that if Mr. Davis did not attend they would revisit sending the letter at the next ANAC meeting in June. Both Ms. White and Mr. Swarens were acceptable for tabling the motion.

2. Public Comment

Ms. Gantwerk opened the public comment period. She reminded the public that each speaker would have three (3) minutes to speak and would not be able to go over the allotted time, to ensure all speakers get an opportunity.

Allan Harris: Mr. Harris noted that on April 5th, there were ten flights that turned north over La Jolla. He wanted to know if those flights were turning north to clear a path to avoid curfew violations? He felt it was interesting that United has the highest score, but they have three flights that typically turn north most evenings. He also pointed out that he sits on the Subcommittee and was disappointed that ANAC tabled this motion to send the letter to the FAA.

Urs Baumann: Mr. Baumann lives in the village of La Jolla and pointed out that up until last October, he didn't have any noise, but now he has lots of noise and they fly close to the shore. He was a flight attendant for 25 years and knows a little bit about airplanes and feels the flights are closer to the shore. He asked why the FAA is not going further out before turning right? In Europe, dense populations, flights are probably a lot faster going up to the higher level, and cruising.

Gary Wonacott, representing the Mission Beach Town Council: Mr. Wonacott presented a proposal for ANAC to consider. He feels that pilots need to be educated on the flights over Mission Beach using PADRZ. He has analyzed how the new PADRZ is flying and feels there are modifications that could be made to decrease impacts over Mission Beach. He also talked about his desire to see more stage four operations. He obtained information on the Fly Quiet calculations and has determined there is a strong correlation between the airlines that had predominantly stage four aircraft, and ones that had the quietest scores. He feels the airport should put pressure on all carriers (especially Southwest Airlines) to fly stage four aircraft out of San Diego.

Lee Miller: Expressed concerns that in the last few months, the amount of noise from aircraft has risen exponentially. Historically, there has been a lot of aircraft noise from military—Marine helicopters, and private helicopters and private planes. In the last maybe six months, Mr. Miller expressed noise from commercial aircraft has increased. He expressed that he saw many Southwest airlines flights and that they were much closer and lower to the coast. The noise is constant and very stressful.

Beatrice Pardo: Expressed that sending a letter to the FAA for a new representative was a time sensitive matter. She stated she doesn't feel it should be difficult to get a decision maker to resolve the problems affecting their lives. She has been kept up late and night and early in the morning for noise and wants it resolved now.

Chris McCann: Lives in La Jolla and sits on the Subcommittee. he appreciates the efforts that have been done on this contentious issue. He read a letter from another La Jolla resident is impacted by the arrival flight path into San Diego that he felt changed several months ago. He stated that it appears everyone is unreceptive to acknowledging that these changes have adversely affected thousands of people. He indicated that he feels the altitudes on WebTrak are incorrect and are actually flying lower than it says they are. Mr. McCann stated he was disappointed about the situation with the letter. He was involved in crafting the letter and felt it was a simple request that to have someone with Barry Davis' managerial capability to understand the FAA management process at the meeting. He said that if the FAA doesn't show up with someone who helps us make solutions, they are part of the problem. Mr. McCann felt it was interesting that Southwest has some of the lowest Fly Quiet scores and he pointed out that they have many more operations as any other airline. Mr. McCann wanted to know how many of the 8,220 complaints were received by email because without the ability to send complaints via email, they will decrease because they will not have that avenue to submit complaints.

Matthew Price: Focused his comments on flights after 10 p.m. because he felt those flights were particularly egregious. He said that after 10 p.m. flights are nonstop and some flights that would normally go south are turning to the north along the coast and turn over La Jolla. Mr. Price pointed out that noise complaints in La Jolla make up the majority of the complaints in the San Diego community. He feels that because of this a La Jolla member should be added to this committee.

Patty Davidson Lives in La Jolla and noticed increased commercial air traffic outbound from near the coastline. Described that flights appear to be lower and closer to the coast. Then before when after 9:00 p.m. there were few cars and not much noise. She said the number of flights was considerably less, and not a big problem but described that now there are routine outbound flights, which take off every 30 minutes, while flights approach from the east and the noise can last five minutes. She said she gets visual jet engines, audible noise, with associated pollution from them and that she is really getting tired physically, and mentally.

Cameron Volker: Lives in La Jolla Shores and was present to discuss the loud jet airplane noise from jets. She explained she has lived there for over 30 years, and it was always exceptionally quiet and peaceful until approximately last November when late-night jets blasted over the neighborhood around 10:30 or later at night... She described these jets are departures which have turned sharply over La Jolla to fly east at night. She said the continuous arrivals flying directly over our homes in La Jolla Shores, she hears all day long, and blasting noise of

jets flying continuously all day and night over her homes in La Jolla Shores. She also said jet noises are impacting her quality of life, and highly agitating, likening it to living with a giant kitchen blender or low, medium and high over her homes. She expressed in the recent past, she had no noise in La Jolla Shores from jet airplanes; it was always quiet, with the exception of some small planes and helicopters. She would like it if fight patterns, paths and altitudes could be examined and adjusted, so that La Jolla Shores can revert back to the previously peaceful neighborhood, not one with the frequency of flights, which never used to fly over. She said direct over major freeways and industrial areas where flights could be directed for arrival, away from La Jolla Shores.

Krishna Ratnam: Talked about the impacts the flight change has had on his children. They can now see the airline name and feel that the only cause for this is that the flight paths have changed to fly closer to the coast.

Kasia Navarro: Indicated she was an attorney and a mother of a small child. She has lived in La Jolla for 17 years and enjoyed peace and tranquility. She had never considered leaving her home until now because of the aircraft noise. The planes are so close she can see the colors and knows what airlines they are. She is concerned about the noise levels during the summer when they keep their windows and doors open. She made a decision to move to La Jolla, and not in Point Loma, because she knew that there were certain areas of San Diego County were going to be subject to some form of airplane noise. She is concerned with the inaction of the committee and wants changes now.

Chris Roberts: Mr. Roberts lives in La Jolla and referenced recently published National Transportation Noise Map showing increases in noise because of lower aircraft altitudes. He felt that the altitudes were underrepresented because they did not account for topography. He mentioned that he felt planes were flying too close to one another, especially planes out of Montgomery Field and Gillespie Field.

Karen Marshall: She lives in La Jolla and feels that residents in this community were lied to, no one notified them of the flight path changes. She has read letters stating people under the flight path should have some form of relief but they have not seen it. The planes have had a negative effect on her life and her ability to enjoy the quiet and serenity in her home.

3. Approval of February 17, 2016 Minutes

Ms. Gantwerk called to motion of approval of the February 27, 2016 meeting minutes. David Swarens approved the motion and Chris Cole seconded the motion.

It was noted that Fred Cosmo and Victoria White abstained.

4. Information Items

Eugene Riendel – Acoustical Consultant with HMMH – presented noise regulations for airports, the presentation can be found online.

Question from ANAC: Ms. White asked if San Diego has a restriction on stage three aircraft already?

Ms. Knack confirmed that and indicated it was specific to a decibel level, for very loud aircraft.

Question from ANAC: Mr. Wear asked what the typical lifecycle of an aircraft?

Mr. Riendel responded by stating aircraft are lasting a lot longer than they were originally designed for. Stage two aircraft would still be flying today, if they were not phased out. There are some stage three aircraft, such as an MD-80, still flying that were built back in the early '70s. He indicated he estimated an aircraft could be used for 30 to 40 years.

<u>New Flight Tracker and Noise Complaint Entry</u> – Ms. Knack presented on the new web-based flight tracking program called Flight Tracker. A new vendor was selected via a competitive process to provide online flight tracking and noise complaint entries. Working with this vendor the Airport made sure to maintain the same functions as WebTrak system, and improve things by adding features that were not available previously, such as adding the noise dots.

In order to make sure that our noise complaints are providing us information that we can use with our aviation stakeholders (namely FAA and airlines) a new web-based system for entering complaints was designed. Staff spends a lot of time entering noise complaints, with the new system, complaints are automatically inputted and it requires the resident to provide specific and useful information that helps the office conduct specific research. Other benefits of the system include:

- Same level of accuracy as both WebTrak and Flight Tracker use the same FAA data feeds.
- Flight Tracker has less of a delay, only 15 minutes. For security reasons the FAA will not allow Flight Tracker to be real time.
- Eventually, residents can pull up to six months of historic flight data.
- Noise monitors will no longer be in real time, noise levels will be integrated 24-hours later. We are working to add the real time noise back into the system.

Question from ANAC: Melissa Hernholm-Danzo asked if there will be an auto-reply for the people that are used to emailing.

Ms. Knack replied that there will be an automatic message, one time, for 30-days.

Ms. Hernholm-Danzo stated some of the people have trouble deciphering between perhaps a Navy jet, a commercial airliner and a helicopter. She wanted to know if they answer incorrectly, then they put helicopter when it's an airplane, what is done with that data?

Ms. Knack stated that with the new noise complaint entry, there is an option for folks that may not know the type of the aircraft, they can pick the "other" category.

Comment from ANAC: Ms. Watkins thanked the Airport Authority for putting this new Flight Tracker in place. She said the recommendation to replace WebTrak can up at the Subcommittee.

Question from ANAC: Ms. White said she wanted to be sensitive to the community's concern about losing email and asked if it would be possible to send out an email blast to the people who have emailed a complaint in the past. This way we could let them know that about the changeover in the system.

Ms. Knack confirmed that an email could be sent out to everyone who had sent in a complaint in 2017.

5. New Business

There was no new business.

6. Next Meeting/Adjourn

The next meeting is scheduled for June 21st, at 4:00 p.m. location to be posted on the Airport Authority website. The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

Sjohnna Knack

Program Manager, Airport Noise Mitigation